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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FF.MS. HRC.)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, Cl VI L PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WEST 90- 34
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 42-01697-03607
V. Bear Canyon No. 1 M ne
C. W M NI NG COVPANY
RESPONDENT
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Robert Murphy, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Denver, Col orado,
for Petitioner;

Carl E. Kingston, Esq., Salt Lake City, Utah
for Respondent.

Bef ore: Judge Melick

This case is before ne upon the petition for civil penalty
filed by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Section 105(d) of the
Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. 0O 801 et
seq., the "Act," charging CW M ning Conmpany (C.W Mning) with
five violations of mandatory standards and proposing ci Vi
penalties totaling $1,450 for the violations. The general issue
before me is whether CW Mning violated the cited regul atory
standards and, if so, the appropriate civil penalty to be
assessed in accordance with Section 110(i) of the Act.

Citation No. 3296377 issued July 5, 1989, pursuant to
Section 104(d)(1) of the Actl alleges a violation of the
mandatory standard at 30 C.F.R. 0O 75.512-2 and charges as
fol |l ows:
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The weekly exami nation of electrical equiprment was
not conducted for all the electrical equipnment
bei ng used underground at the Bear Canyon No. 1

M ne. The equi pnent invol ved consi sted of al

out by equi pnment in both working sections

el ectrical equipnent. The |ast recorded date of

an exam nation recorded in the book for such
purpose was 6-22-89. Managenent is aware of this
requi renent and the chief electrician Nathan Atwood
is responsible to nmake sure the examinations are
conpl ete and recorded.

In questioning a mne electrician who does the

el ectrical exam nation, M. John Tucker, stated he
did not check all the equi pnent due to break downs
| ast week.

Management renoved equi prent from service after

conm ng aware of the violation. It was noted during
t he exam nati on on several pieces of equipnment on
the North Mains working section that severa
deficienties [sic] existed on the equipnment (M ner
10, Roof Bolter 5, std. shuttle car 2, off standard
car 1)

The cited standard, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.512-2 provi des as

foll ows:

The exami nations and tests required by

O 75.512 shall be nmade at |east weekly.

Perm ssi bl e equi prent shall be exam ned to see that
it is in permssible condition.
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30 CF.R 0O 75.512 provides as follows:

Al'l electric equipnent shall be frequently

exam ned, tested, and properly maintained by a
qualified person to assure safe operating
conditions. When a potentially dangerous condition
is found on electric equi pnment, such equi pnent
shall be renoved from service until such condition
is corrected. A record of such a exam nations
shal |l be kept and nade available to an authorized
representative of the Secretary and to the mners
in such mne

Donal d G bson, a Coal Mne Inspector for the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Adm nistration (MSHA) and an electrica
specialist with extensive experience as a mner and el ectrician
i nspected the Bear Canyon No. 1 Mne on July 5, 1989. Early in
the course of his inspection he exam ned the | og books in which
weekly exam nations of electrical equipnment are required to be
recorded. It is not disputed that the |ast date then recorded in
the 1 og book for electrical exam nations was June 22, 1989.
According to G bson, John Tucker, the mne electrician in charge
of conducting the electrical exam nations, at first admtted that
he had not conpleted the exam nations on all the electrica
equi pnent because there had been several break downs on other
el ectrical equipnent that he had been directed to repair. Upon
further questioning Tucker could not renmenber which equi prent he
had al ready exanmi ned and coul d not produce a checklist to show
whi ch equi pnent had al ready been checked. According to G bson
Tucker then admitted that he had not perfornmed exam nations on
any of the electrical equipnment.

Twenty-two year old electrician John Tucker testified that
he becane a certified electrician at age 20 and had been
performng nearly all of the electrical inspections at the
subj ect mne since then. In apparent contradiction to his earlier
admi ssions to G bson, Tucker testified that he now believed that
he in fact did performan electrical inspection on the Thursday
foll owi ng June 22, because "that's the day we always do it".
Tucker admtted telling Inspector G bson that he had not
conpl eted the exam but clainmed at hearing that he nmeant only that
he had not entered the record of the exanm nations in the |og
book. He "conpletely forgot" to enter the results of his alleged
exam nation in the | og book. Tucker neverthel ess did concede at
hearing that the electrical examination he did performfailed to
i nclude areas of the electrical equi pment where Iids have to be
renoved.
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Tucker could not recall at hearing that Inspector G bson had
asked whi ch machi nes had al ready been checked. He admitted that
t here had been equi pment breakdowns at the tine he was supposed
to be conducting his electrical inspection. According to Tucker
reporting the results of electrical inspections is a "less
i mportant duty" and admitted that he had not reported the results
of the exam nation he purportedly nmade on June 27, even as of the
date of G bson's inspection on July 5.

C.W Mning's Chief Electrician Nathan Atwood conceded t hat
they had a history of failing to record electrical exam nations
at the Bear Creek M ne. Atwood al so clainmed that he was unaware
that his electrician was not using a checklist to performhis
el ectrical inspections and never asked Tucker whether he was in
fact using a checklist. Atwood mmintains that Tucker now uses a
checkl i st.

Based on the undisputed record evidence alone it is clear
that the violation is proven as charged. The testinony of
el ectrician John Tucker is noreover wi thout credibility. The
credi bl e evidence shows that not only did Tucker fail to report
the weekly electrical inspections but he indeed failed to inspect
any of the electricial equipnment as required. The evidence that
this is a recurrent problemat this mne and that even when the
el ectrical inspections are performed they are done in a carel ess
and slipshod manner adds to the aggravated nature of the
vi ol ati on and the negligence causing it. The obvious |ack of
trai ni ng and supervision over Tucker by Chief Electician Atwood
al so supports a finding of serious negligence.

In order to find that a violation is "significant and
substantial" the Secretary has the burden of proving the
exi stence of an underlying violation of a mandatory standard, the
exi stence of a discrete hazard (a neasure of danger to health or
safety) contributed to by the violation, a reasonable |likelihood
that the hazard contributed to will result in an injury, and a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the injury in question will be of a
reasonably serious nature. Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1 (1984).

Clearly the failure to conduct required electrica
exam nations is a nost serious violation. In this case in
particul ar I nspector G bson found serious unreported violative
conditions in various electrical equipnment available for use in
the subject mine. According to G bson these uncorrected
conditions could have caused fires or nmethane or dust expl osions
triggered by the electrical violations. In addition the
violations in thenmselves could create a serious hazard of
injuries or fatalities fromelectrical shock. The violation was
therefore clearly of high gravity and "significant and
substantial ".
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The violation was also the result of "unwarrantable failure" and
hi gh negligence. C. W Mning has a history of failing to perform
and record electrical exam nations. Wth such a negligent history
the failure of CW Mning's chief electrician to properly
supervise and train the electrician in charge of the weekly
el ectrical inspections is particularly egregi ous. The testinony
of the electrician that even when he conducted exam nations he
did not bother to examine all parts of the electrical equipnent
during required weekly inspections e.g. areas where "lids" have
to be renmoved, shows that even when exami nations were performed
they were perforned in a grossly deficient manner. Under all the
circunstances, | find in this case such aggravated conduct,
onmi ssions and gross negligence that | conclude the violation was
a result of "unwarrantable failure". Emery Mning Co., 9 FMSHRC
1997 (1987), appeal pending (D.C. Circuit No. 88-1019).

Order No. 3411644, also issued pursuant to Section 104(d) (1)
of the Act, alleges five violations of the standard at 30 C.F.R
0 75.503 and charges as follows

The Lee Norse M ner, 2G 3653A-0 being used on the North
Mai ns wor ki ng section was not maintained in permssible
condi tion.

An unaut horized field change was nmade on the machi ne. Al so
observed was [sic] several other conditions |listed bel ow

1. The field change was the installation of an

MCI Model 27434, Approval BFE-1047-87, flourescent
lum nize lighting system consisting of (4) four
lights.

Management was aware of filing the proper
papers as having been informed by an MSHA i nspect or
on or around June 29, 1989, who observed the mner
| ocated in the underground shop at the mne

The MSHA inspector, M. Robert Baker, inforned
M. Ken Defa, Superintendent, that any field
changes shoul d have the necessary paper work
subm tted for approval prior to operating the
machi ne.

The machi ne was taken to the North Mins
wor ki ng section and put into production w thout
notifying MSHA of any changes.

2. A packing gland on the inby end of the nmain
controller was closer than the allowable 1/8 inch
cl earance. The gland was flush with the controller
box.

3. An opening in excess of .005 inch was present
in the punp nmotor cover lid and junction box.

4. A packing gland on the electric tram



controller was closer than the 1/8 inch all owabl e
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cl earance. Measured to be 1/16 inch fromthe
control |l er box.

5. The hose conduit covering the inner machi ne
cable on the left cutter notor was not secured
under the packing gland clanp. The cabl e appeared
not to have been inserted far enough in the notor
junction box and was taped over to obtain the sanme
protection as the conduit.

The cited standard, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.503 provides that "[t]he
operator of each coal mne shall maintain in permssible
condition all electric face equiprment required by O 75. 500,
75.501, 75.504 to be perm ssible which is taken into or used inby
the | ast open crosscut of any such mne."

According to I nspector G bson, upon his return to the
subj ect mne on July 10, 1989, around 6:40 a.m, he observed the
cited Lee Norse Mner in the working section in the North Mains
area with the noted conditions. The nminer was then energi zed and
he believed that it had just been used on a production shift
because it was "warni.

It is not disputed that the subject mner was the type of
equi pnent required to be "permissible" by law. It is |ikew se not
disputed that if the conditions cited by Inspector G bson in the
subj ect order actually existed then the cited equi pnrent woul d not
have been in a "permi ssible" condition and therefore would have
been in violation of the cited standard.

As noted, the order alleges five separate and distinct
perm ssibility violations any one of which (assunming that it was
a "significant and substantial" and an "unwarrantable failure"
violation) would be sufficient to sustain the order. In this case
I find that all five allegations of violations are proven as
charged and that each was "significant and substantial" and the
result of "unwarrantable failure"

The first violation charged in the order was that an
unaut hori zed field change was made on the Lee Norse M ner being
used in the North Main working section in that a flourecent
lighting system consisting of four lights was installed on the
machi ne wi t hout prior MSHA approval .

30 CF.R [O18.81(a) provides as follows:

An owner of approved (pernmnissible) equi pment who
desires to nmake nodifications in such equi pnent
shall apply in witing to nmake such nodifications.
The application, together with the plans of

nodi fications, shall be filed with Approval and
Certification Center, Box 201B, Industrial Park
Road, Dallas Pi ke, Triadel phia, Wst Virginia
26049.
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It is not disputed that CW Mning failed to apply to MSHA for
the field nodification at issue. The violation is accordingly
proven as charged. MSHA |Inspector Robert Baker testified noreover
that on June 29, 1989, while perform ng duties at the subject
m ne he was informed by M ne Superintendent Kenneth Defay about
antici pated changes to be nade on a continuous miner then in the
shop including changes to the lighting system Baker testified
that he cautioned Defay to check to see whether he needed
approval from MSHA for a field nodification for the changes.

Def ay acknow edged that Baker told himthat he would need
MSHA approval for field nodifications for electrical changes but
Defay testified that he thought Baker said that approval was
needed only for "major" electrical changes. Defay clains that he
t hought |ighting system changes needed no MSHA approval. Defay
al so clained ignorance of the provisions of 30 CF. R 0O 18.81
(requiring MSHA approval for field nodifications on perm ssible
el ectrical equipnent).

Chi ef electrician Nathan Atwood al so cl ai ned ignorance of
the requirements of 30 CF.R [0 18.81. Atwood mmintains that in
any event since the field change was subsequently approved by
MSHA there was no hazard in failing to get its prior approval

The record al so shows however that the Co-op M ning Conpany,
the predecessor operator of the Bear Canyon M ne and parent
organi zation of CW Mning, previously corresponded with MSHA
requesting approval for the installation of |ighting systens at
| east five tines in 1979 and 1980. |Indeed two of the letters
requesting nodifications were authored by M. Stoddard who was
then and is now president of the subject conpany.

Wthin the above framework it is clear that CW M ning
Superi nt endent Kenneth Defay was specifically advised, only 10
days before the subject order was issued, of the need to verify
whet her prior MSHA approval was needed before naking the
anticipated field nodifications. Wile there is some question as
to whet her MSHA I nspector Baker specifically told Defay that
prior MSHA approval was necessary for a field nodification to the
lighting system it is clear that Defay was placed on such notice
fromwhich he certainly had the obligation to verify whether or
not such prior approval was necessary. His clainms of ignorance
cannot therefore be given any weight either toward negating the
violation or in mtigating his negligence. The evidence is clear
noreover that it was within the collective know edge of C.W
M ni ng managenent that prior MSHA approval was indeed necessary
for field nodifications to the lighting systemon the subject
m ner because that management had previously made such requests
to MSHA. Under the circunmstances the failure to
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seek and obtain prior MSHA approval for the field nodification
was the result of negligence of such an aggravated nature as to
constitute "unwarrantable failure". Emery Mning Co., supra.

The violation was also "significant and substantial". Wile
it turned out in this case that indeed the nodifications as nade
wer e subsequently approved by MSHA the purpose of the standard is
to foreclose the possibility of dangerous conditions. Considering
normal m ning operations it may reasonably be inferred that
failure to obtain prior MSHA approval for field nodifications to
perm ssible electrical equi pment would reasonably likely lead to
reasonably serious injuries in the mning environment. Mthies
Coal Conpany, supra.

The second and fourth violations charged in the subject
order concern insufficient packing in packing glands at two
| ocations on the subject mner. The requirenments for packing are
set forth in 30 CF.R Part 18 Appendix Il Figure 8. It is not
di sputed that wi thout sufficient packing an arc or flame could
reach the outside atnosphere and ignite coal dust or nethane or
that an electrical cable could becone damaged. By way of defense
to the charges CW Mning maintains only that the packing was
i ndeed sufficient.

In light of the prior deficiencies found in the credibility
of the operator's principal wtness however | give greater weight
to the uni npeached testimony of |nspector G bson and find that
i ndeed there was a deficiency in the packing as charged. In |ight
of the undi sputed evidence concerning the hazard involved with
i nsufficient packing I also conclude that the violations were
"significant and substantial". Mathies Coal Co., supra.

I nsufficient packing of the packing glands is also the type
of violation that should be discovered during an appropriate
weekly el ectrical inspection. The failure of CW Mning to have
conducted a weekly electrical inspection (a finding | have nmade
in reference to Citation No. 3296377) supports the finding that
these violations were also the result of gross negligence and
aggravat ed conduct constituting "unwarrantable failure". Enmery
M ni ng Co., supra.

The order charges, thirdly that an opening in excess of .005
inch was present in the punp notor cover lid and junction box.
Under 30 C.F.R Part 18 Sub-Part D Appendix Il Figure 5, a
maxi mum cl earance of .004 inch is allowed. C.W M ning does not
deny the existence of this violation as charged but maintains
(through el ectrician John Tucker) that such a gap in excess of
. 005 inch does not involve any danger. However in light of this
el ectrician's notable | ack of
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experience and established deficiencies in credibility |I can give
this opinion but little weight.

On the other hand I find the testinony of |Inspector G bson,a
hi ghly qualified and experienced el ectrician, conpletely
credi ble. According to G bson with such a gap in the punp cover
lid and junction box there was a real danger that a short circuit
or arc within the notor could escape into the outside mning
at nosphere igniting nethane or coal dust thereby inferentially
causing flash fire or explosion. The violation was clearly
therefore "significant and substantial". Mathies Coal Conpany,
supr a.

The violation was also the result of negligence of such an
aggravated nature as to constitute "unwarrantable failure"
Emergy Coal Co., supra. The electrician responsible for
i nspecting this electrical equipnent has been found not to have
even conducted the weekly electrical inspection that, if properly
done, would have led to the discovery of this nost serious
violation. It is apparent noreover that even when the weekly
i nspections were perforned not all parts of the electrica
equi pment were inspected, e.g. area where lids had to be renoved
such as the punp notor |id here involved. This violation was
extrenely serious and the cavalier and negligent attitude of the
el ectrician responsible for these inspections is nost disturbing.

Finally, the fifth violation charged in the subject order
concerns the failure to have secured the hose conduit covering
the inner machine cable on the left cutter notor under the
packi ng gl and clanp. According to the allegations the cable
appeared not to have been inserted far enough into the notor
junction box and was taped over to obtain protection sinmlar to
that provided by a conduit. For the reasons already noted
accord the testinony of Inspector G bson full credibility.

According to G bson the tape covering the cable did not
afford the same degree of protection as the hose conduit and
i ndeed the cable could produce an ignition source for a methane
or dust explosion. The violation was therefore clearly
"significant and substantial™ and serious. Inasnuch as the
violation was caused by the affirmative act of a worker and was
subject to electrical inspections, the failure to have | ocated
and corrected this violation constitutes gross negligence and
"unwarrantable failure".

Order No. 3411646 al so issued pursuant to Section 104(d) (1)
of the Act, alleges a violation of the standard at 30 CF. R O
75. 400 and charges as fol |l ows:

Accunul ations of | oose Coal, coal pieces and
coal fines were permitted to accurmulate in the #20
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Room on the 2nd West working section. The
accumrul ati ons began at the section feeder breaker
and extended approxi mtely 332 feet inby and
measured to range between 2-12 inches deep x 11
feet wide. This entry was the shuttle car roadway.
The shuttle cars are supplied 480VAC.

Al'so in the |ast open cross cut to the left of
the #20 Room accunul ati ons of coal fines (first
cuttings) was [sic] observed on the left and right
ribs approximately 90 [sic] in length x 16 inches
deep x 29 inches w de (measured).

The joy shuttle cars were observed running
over these accunul ati ons.

The graveyard foreman, Gayl on Atwood, was
present on the section at this time. Al so present
on the section were the two(2) day shift forenen,
Shin Stoddard and Randy Def a.

These accumnul ati ons were very obvi ous.
M. Atwood stated, "the area around the feeder
breaker had been cleaned around 1:30 a.m this date
but the entry was not cleaned. He also stated he
observed the accumul ations but did not feel they
were (accunul ations) that bad until the cleaning up
of the accunul ati ons was under way"

M. Atwood al so perfornmed the pre-shift
exam nation of this section and these conditions
were not observed at that tinme. (*Note a separate
violation was issued for an i nadequate preshift).

The cited, standard 30 C.F.R 0O 75.400 provides that "[c]oa
dust, including float coal dust deposited on rock-dusted
surfaces, |oose coal, and other conbustible materials, shall be
cl eaned-up and not be permitted to accunmul ate in active workings,
or on electric equipnent therein." Inspector G bson testified
that he in fact found the conditions cited in the above order
during the course of his inspection on July 12, 1989. Although
the accunul ati ons were found in several areas he issued only one
citation for the conditions. According to G bson nuch of the
mat eri al consisted of coal "fines" which he defined as pul verized
coal that would not pass through a No. 20 seive. It is not
di sputed that coal fines are nore dangerous than other coa
accumrul ati ons because they are nore readily ignitable and woul d
increase the intensity of any ignition. The violations were
particul arly hazardous according to G bson because the shuttle
cars were continuing to run over the accunul ati ons thereby
further crushing and pul verizing the coal dropped fromthe cars
and the fact that the shuttle cars were electrically powered with
trailing cables laying in the coal dust. G bson opined that the
accurrul ati ons were extensive and with the ignition sources
present injuries and or fatalities were |ikely. Based on this
credi bl e testinony I
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find the violation to be "significant and substantial" and
serious. Mathies Coal Co., supra.

According to G bson, Shane Stoddard the day shift oncom ng
foreman al so admtted that the accunul ati ons "Il ooked bad"
St oddard i nformed G bson however that he did not plan to clean
t he accunul ati ons for another two hours and that is when G bson
i ssued the order at bar.

G bson al so concluded that the violation was the result of
the operator's "unwarrantable failure”". He observed that on his
first day inspecting the subject mne he told Defa about the
necessity for the clean-up of first cuttings. The cited
accunmul ations were in his opinion also "very obvious". In |ight
of this credible evidence | agree that the violation was indeed
the result of "unwarrantable failure."

Order No. 3411647, also issued under Section 104(d) (1) of
the Act, alleges a violation of the standard at 30 C.F. R 0O
75.303(a) and charges as follows:

An i nadequate preshift exam nation was
conducted on the 2nd West working section on
7-12-89, by the graveyard forenman, Gayl on Atwood,
for the onconm ng day shift. Accunul ati ons of | oose
coal, coal pieces and coal fines and first cuttings
was [sic] permitted to accunulate in the No. 20
Room and | ast open crosscut to the left off No. 20
Room These accumul ati ons were obvi ous and very
ext ensive.

The standard at 30 C.F.R [0 75.303(a) provides in rel evant
part as follows:

Wthin 3 hours inmediately preceding the
begi nni ng of any shift, and before any mner in
such shift enters the active workings of a coa
m ne, certified persons designated by the operator
of the m ne shall exam ne such workings and any
ot her underground area of the m ne designated by
the Secretary or his authorized representative.
Each such exam ner shall exam ne every worKking
section in such workings and shall . . . exam ne
active roadways, travelways, and belt conveyors on
whi ch nen are carried, approaches to abandoned
areas, and accessible falls in such section for
hazards; . . . and examine for such other hazards and
vi ol ati ons of the mandatory health or safety
standards as an authorized representative of the
Secretary may fromtine to time require. . . . Upon
conpl eting his exam nation, such m ne exam ner
shall report the the results of his exam nation to
a person, designated by the operator to receive
such reports at a designated station on the surface
of the before other persons enter the
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under ground areas of such mne to work in such
shift. Each such nine exam ner shall also record
the results of his exam nation with ink or
i ndelible pencil in a book approved by the
Secretary kept for such purpose in an area on the
surface of the mine chosen by the operator to
m nimze the danger of destruction by fire or other
hazard, and the record shall be open for inspection
by interested persons.

In essence, the basis for this order was the failure to
report in the preshift exam nation books the accunul ations that
were cited in Order No. 3411646 di scussed supra. G bson observed
that the accumnul ati ons exi sted between 5:00 and 7: 00 a. m when
the preshift exam nation was required to be perfornmed and that
the accunul ati ons were not reported in the preshift book
According to G bson, Foreman Atwood reportedly had perfornmed the
preshift examination in the cited roadway and 20 room but fail ed
to report the the cited conditions in the exanination book
G bson concl uded that the violation was "significant and
substanti al” because the hazardous condition caused by the
massi ve accumul ations would not likely be corrected in the
absence of a report in the preshift exam nation book and woul d
therefore fail to assure mners of a safe working environment. |
find G bson's testinmony credible in this regard and sufficient to
support the violation and its "significant and substantial"
findi ngs.

G bson al so concluded that the violation was the result of
"unwarrantable failure"” for the reason that an experienced
section foreman such as Atwood shoul d not overl ook such
conditions. Again | find G bson's testinony to be credible in
this regard and that it fully supports the concl usions reached.
Particul arly because of the nassive size of the accunul ations the
failure to have reported them constitutes aggravated negligence
and "unwarrantable failure".

Order No. 3411648 al so issued pursuant to Section 104(d) (1)
of the Act, also charges a violation of the standard at 30 CF.R
75.400. The order charges as foll ows:

Accunul ations of dry coal pieces, |oose coal
and float coal dust was [sic] permitted to
accurul ate on the Joy M ner 2G 2519A-25(S/ NJML868),
bei ng used on the 2nd West worki ng section.

These accunul ati ons were present and observed
on top of and under the covers of the entire
machi ne.

These accunul ati ons of float dust ranged from
afilmlinch deep x 18 inches wide x 60 inches
long on top of the miner. Under the covers a film
up to 5 inches deep x 9 inches wide x 60 inches
| ong.
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The accumnul ations of float coal dust and coa
pi eces under the shields (covers) were on, under
and around the electrical conpartnents and el ectric
not or s.

The m ner was observed cutting coal before
this condition was addressed. The graveyard
section foreman, Gaylon Atwood was present on the
section while this condition existed.

Al so present on the section were the (2) two
day shift forenmen, Shane Stoddard and Randy Def a.
These accumul ati ons were very obvi ous and very
ext ensive.

The m ner is supplied 950VAC and is capabl e of
produci ng sparks during the normal cutting of coal

G bson testified that the conditions cited in the above
order were indeed present at the time of his inspection on July
12, 1989. He observed that the miner was in the act of cutting
coal when he observed the accumnul ati ons. G bson opined that a
spark froman electrical conponent or the cutter head itself with
the amount of float coal dust present would act |ike "gunpowder"
they were so explosive. Indeed the conditions were so obvi ous
that, according to G bson, Foreman Atwood admitted that "I can't
argue about that -- it's obvious".

G bson al so took sampl es of the coal dust which passed
t hrough a No. 20 seive and tagged and | abeled it. He l|later mailed
the sanple to the MSHA Analysis Center and received in return a
one-page analysis (Exhibit G4) indicating that the material was
88 percent conbustible. This credible evidence clearly supports a
finding that the violation occurred and was of high gravity and
"significant and substantial".

| also accept the credible findings of Inspector G bson that
the accunul ati ons were obvious and readily observable to the
section foreman working in the area. Under the circunstances |
agree that the violation was the result of aggravated conduct
constituting gross negligence and "unwarrantable failure"

Considering all of the criteria under section 110(i),
i ncluding the significant history of simlar violations at this
mne, | consider the following civil penalties appropriate:
Citation No. 3296377-%$950, Order No. 3411644 $1,500, Order No.
3411646-$900, Order No. 3411647-$850, Order No. 3411648-$900.
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ORDER

Section 104(d)(1) Citation No. 3296377 as well as Section
104(d) (1) Orders No. 3411644, 3411646, 3411647 and 3411648 are
affirmed. CW M ning Conpany is hereby directed to pay within 30
days of the date of this decision civil penalties of $950,
$1, 500, $900, $850 and $900, respectively for the violations
charged in the citation and orders noted above.

Gary Melick

Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTES START HERE

1. Section 104(d)(1) provides as follows:

I f, upon any inspection of a coal or other mine, an
authorized representative of the Secretary finds that there has
been a violation of any mandatory health or safety standard, and
if he also finds that, while the conditions created by such
vi ol ati on do not cause imm nent danger, such violation is of such
nature as could significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a coal or other mne safety or health hazard,
and if he finds such violation to be caused by an unwarrantabl e
failure of such operator to conmply with such mandatory health or
safety standards, he shall include such finding in any citation
given to the operator under this Act. If during the sane
i nspection or any subsequent inspection of such nmine within 90
days after the issuance of such citation, an authorized
representative of the Secretary finds another violation of any
mandatory health or safety standard and finds such violation to
be al so caused by an unwarrantable failure of such operator to so
conply, he shall forthwith issue an order requiring the operator
to cause all persons in the area affected by such violation,
except those persons referred to in subsection (c) to be
wi thdrawn from and to be prohibited fromentering, such area
until an authorized representative of the Secretary determ nes
t hat such viol ati on has been abat ed.



